

www.fresnocog.org

# Transportation Technical Committee MINUTES Friday, January 12, 2024 8:30 AM

The meeting was held at FCOG Sequoia Conference Room.

Ryan Burnett, City of Clovis Eric Rocha, City of Fowler Soo Ho Park, City of Fowler Mohammad Alimi, County of Fresno Jill Gormley, City of Fresno Jennifer Clark, City of Fresno Michael Osborn, City of Mendota Marilu Morales, City of Reedley Nick Paladino, Fresno Cycling Club Tina Sumner, Active Transportation Christopher Xiong, Caltrans Robert Phipps, Fresno Council of Governments Moses Stites, Fresno County Rural Transit Agency

The meeting was called to order at 8:32 a.m. by Mr. Stites (FCRTA), Chair.

### I. TRANSPORTATION CONSENT ITEMS

- A. Executive Minutes of November 3, 2023 [APPROVE]
- B. TDA Claims (Les Beshears) [ACTION]
  - 1. <u>City of Huron FY 2023-24 TDA Claim (Les Beshears) [ACTION]</u>
  - 2. City of Fresno FY 2023-24 TDA Claim (Les Beshears) [ACTION]
  - 3. City of San Joaquin 2022-23 TDA Claim (Les Beshears) [ACTION]
- C. 2024 Safety Performance Targets PM1 (Santosh Bhattarai) [ACTION]
- D. Fresno County Regional Transit On-Board Survey Consultant Selection (Santosh Bhattarai) [ACTION]
- E. State and Federal Transportation Grants -- Notices of Funding Opportunities (Robert Phipps) [INFORMATION]
- F. Fresno County Coordinated Public Transit-Human Services Transportation Plan (Jeff Long) [ACTION]
- G. <u>Caltrans FY 2024-25 Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant Program Applications (Paul Herman) [INFORMATION]</u>
- H. <u>Technical Support Contract for the 2026 Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (Paul Herman)</u> [ACTION]
- I. Measure C TOD 12th Funding Cycle Call for Projects (Simran Jhutti) [INFORMATION]
- J. Fresno COG's 2023-24 Overall Work Program Amendment No. 3 (Les Beshears) [ACTION]
- K. Archive Central California Household Survey data at Transportation Secure Data Center (Shichen Fan) [INFORMATION]
- L. <u>Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP 2.0) Juan Ramirez [INFORMATION]</u>
- Mr. Stites pulled item E for presentation.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mrs. Clark (Fresno) motioned, and Mr. Burnett (Clovis) seconded to approve the consent agenda items A-L apart from item E.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

• Lorena Mendibles with Caltrans District 6 gave a presentation on the State and Federal Transportation Grants Funding Opportunities.

This item is informational. No action is needed.

## **II. TRANSPORTATION ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS**

# A. <u>2023-24 Surface Transportation Block Grant Program Regional Bid Project Funding Recommendations (Ofelia Abundez)</u> [ACTION]

**Summary:** On June 29, 2023, Fresno COG's Policy Board issued a formal call-for-projects for the Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) regional bid program, with \$33.4 million in available funding for this cycle. Staff received 41 applications by the Oct. 6, 2023 deadline, requesting over \$61 million in funding.

The Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) scoring committee convened on Dec. 5, 2023, to deliberate on the recommended program of projects. The scoring committee comprised representatives from: urban city (Clovis), county, east side, west side, Caltrans, Fresno COG, and transit. The scoring committee project recommendations are included as an enclosure along with the contingency list, regional bid results by agency, and the total funding distribution results.

Action: Staff requests that TTC/PAC recommend the Policy Board approve the scoring committee's project recommendations for the 2023-24 Surface Transportation Block Grant (STBG) Program. The Committee may provide additional direction at its discretion.

- Ofelia Abundez (FCOG) provided an update of the STBG Grant Program.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mrs. Morales (Reedley) motioned, and Mr. Osborn (Mendota) seconded to approve the action as presented.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

# B. Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Funding Recommendations (Juan Ramirez) [ACTION]

**Summary**: On Dec. 6, 2023, a regional scoring committee comprising eight representatives from various agencies -including an urban representative (Clovis), east side, west side, transit and others -- prioritized Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program project applications received in September. From the call for projects, Fresno COG received 36 applications from member jurisdictions totaling \$56,027,809 in requests against \$30,014,382 in available funding. Of the 36 applications, 20 projects were recommended for funding (attached).

Action: Staff requests that TTC/PAC recommend the Policy Board approve the scoring committee's project recommendations for the 2023-24 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) Program. The Committee may provide additional direction at its discretion.

- Juan Ramirez (FCOG) provided background information and updates on the CMAQ funding recommendations.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mr. Burnett (Clovis) motioned, and Mrs. Clark (Fresno) seconded to approve the action as presented.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

### C. Carbon Reduction Program Funding Recommendations (Juan Ramirez) [ACTION]

**Summary**: On Dec. 7, 2023, representatives from various agencies evaluated and scored projects for funding for the newly established Carbon Reduction Program under the Federal Infrastructure Investment and Jobs (IIJA) Act. The committee received 10 applications for a total request of \$4,414,296. Out of the 10 applications, eight received funding under the first two years of the program totaling \$3,268,211. Two of the projects were funded through the CMAQ scoring committee and were not considered for funding under CRP.

Action: Staff requests that TTC/PAC recommend the Policy Board approve the scoring committee's project recommendations for the 2023-24 Carbon Reduction Program (CRP). The Committee may provide additional direction at its discretion.

- Juan Ramirez (FCOG) gave an update of the carbon reduction program.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mrs. Sumner (Active Transportation) motioned, and Mrs. Morales (Reedley) seconded to approve the action as presented.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

## D. Caltrans 2023 Construction Contract Standards (Robert Phipps) [ACTION]

**Summary**: On Sept. 5, 2023, Caltrans issued its latest implementation memo to local agencies regarding construction contract standards for off-highway projects. The now-annual update includes standard specifications, plans and bid items that local agencies must use to receive approvals, allocations, obligations and/or authorizations for the construction phase after Oct. 31, 2023.

Previously, Caltrans issued new contract standards approximately every three years with an allowance for local agencies to adopt when appropriate. Now, standards are changing annually and deadlines for adoption are imposed. On Dec. 8, the cities of Fresno and Clovis, along with the County of Fresno, issued a joint letter opposing the requirements as an infeasible mandate and will impact dozens of critically needed infrastructure improvements. The letter argues that the standards and implementation deadline run counter to Caltrans' Division of Local Assistance mission to provide a helping hand to local agencies in completing their projects.

Fresno COG received two requests from the City and County of Fresno to issue a similar letter on behalf of all local jurisdictions in the region. As this is most likely a multi-jurisdictional concern, Fresno COG has drafted a letter for the Policy Board chair's signature.

Action: Staff requests that TTC/PAC recommend the Policy Board approve the Chairwoman to sign a letter to Caltrans' Division of Local Assistance opposing the 2023 Construction Contract Standards for local public agencies.

- Robert Phipps (FCOG) provided background information on the construction contract.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mr. Alimi (Fresno County) motioned, and Mrs. Gormley (Fresno) seconded to approve the action as presented.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

## E. Safe Routes to Schools Subcommittee (Jennifer Rodriguez) [ACTION]

**Summary**: In August 2023, Fresno COG staff began working with urban and rural school districts to initiate a regional planning process to identify an inventory of Safe Routes to Schools (SRTS) needs in Fresno County.

The intent is for the school districts' SRTS planning processes to work in conjunction with Fresno COG member agencies' Active Transportation Plan (ATP) planning processes by developing a SRTS inventory that will be included in Fresno COG's Regional ATP Plan update and the next Measure C renewal effort.

Fresno COG staff began reaching out to school districts in August 2023 for an initial meeting to discuss the SRTS/ATP planning process. Outreach includes emails, letters, and phone calls.

Since the start of outreach in August, Fresno COG has met with 26 of 32 school districts in the county. Of the 26 districts, 16 have submitted an inventory of needs to Fresno COG. The table below illustrates with which school districts FCOG staff has met, those that have submitted inventory, and in which member jurisdiction the district is located. In addition, Fresno COG has been meeting with member agencies whose school districts have submitted inventory.

The timing is right for a Fresno COG SRTS Subcommittee comprising, initially, Policy Board members who will facilitate an SRTS inventory by working closely with school districts' staff. This subcommittee is expected to grow to include school district staff and other interested stakeholders who will help establish a thoroughly vetted project list for the Regional ATP Plan update.

This project and the SRTS Subcommittee come in response to the Measure C renewal process. Voters who were opposed to the measure felt that Measure C has not adequately supported safe routes to schools within the region. Staff's goal is that this cross-jurisdictional (transportation-education) regional planning process and subcommittee will advance safe routes to schools through a project inventory and collaborative discussions of SRTS.

		Survey Submitted/	Local Jurisdiction/SOI
		Inventory	
School District	Met W/	Collected	
Alvina Elementary	х	х	County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Big Creek Elementary*			County of Fresho (Unincorporated)
Burrel Union Elementary	Х	х	County of Fresho (Unincorporated)
Caruthers Unified*			County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Central Unified	Х		Fresno
Clay Joint Elementary	Х		County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
C lov is Unified	Х		Clovis
Coalinga-Huron Unified	Х	х	Coalinga, Huron
Firebaugh-Las Deltas Unified	Х	х	Firebaugh
Fowler Unified	Х	х	Fowler
Fresno Unified	Х		Fresno
Golden Plains Unified	х	х	County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Kerman Unified	Х	х	Kerman
Kings Canyon Joint Unified	Х	х	Reedley, Orange Cove
Kingsburg Elementary Charter	Х		Kingsburg
Kingsburg Joint Union High	Х		Kingsburg
Laton Joint Unified	Х	х	County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Mendota Unified	Х	х	Mendota
Monroe Elementary*			County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Orange Center School	Х		Fresno
Pacific Union Elementary*			County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Parlier Unified	Х	Х	Parlier
Pine Ridge Elementary	Х	х	County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Raisin City Elementary*			County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Riverdale Joint Unified	Х	х	County of Fresho (Unincorporated)
Sanger Unified*			Sanger
Selma Unified	Х		Selma
Sierra Unified	Х	х	County of Fresho (Unincorporated)
Washington Colony Elementary	Х	х	County of Fresho (Unincorporated)
Washington Unified	х	х	Fresno
West Park School District	Х		County of Fresno (Unincorporated)
Westside Elementary	Х		County of Fresno (Unincorporated)

\*Have not met with Fresno COG staff

Action: Staff requests that TTC/PAC recommend the Policy Board appoint a Fresno COG Safe Routes to Schools Subcommittee initially comprising Policy Board members.

- Jennifer Rodriguez (FCOG) gave a summary of the Safe Rountes to Schools Subcommittee.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mr. Alimi (Fresno County) motioned, and Mrs. Sumner (Active Transportation) seconded to approve the action as presented.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

### F. Measure C Regional Transportation Program Update Fiscal Year 2023/24 (Les Beshears) [ACTION]

**Summary**: The Measure C Regional Transportation Program includes major highway infrastructure projects approved by the voters when Measure C was extended in 2007. Total anticipated revenues across all sources increased \$271,099,000 to \$1,505,394,000 from the 2020 adopted plan. Actual project cost and internal borrowing cost increased \$151,129,000 to \$1,663,349,000.

#### Revenues

Sales Tax expectations for 2023 were adjusted upward 10.2% to reflect the above trend effects of the current inflation, raising sales tax projections \$57,020,000 to \$614,816,000.

The regional component of the State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) funds dedicated to the South Fresno Interchanges of North/Cedar and American Ave. increased \$54,353,000.

The state component of the STIP, the Interregional Improvement (IITIP) increased \$31,000,000 for SR 41 – Excelsior to Kings County.

The Local Partnership Program (LPP) increased \$7,272,000 for the Golden State Corridor Project.

The High-Speed Rail Authority completed the \$61,373,000 Herndon @ UPPR in Fresno.

The state SHOPP program contributed \$14,000,000 to SR 41 – Excelsior to Kings County.

Local contributions increased \$26,661,000 on the Herndon undercrossing @ SR 99.

Interest earnings increased \$9,250,000.

# Т

# he Urban Program

The Urban program has an estimated \$876,403,000 in revenues, \$845,113,000 in expenses and a net surplus of \$31,250,000 to provide a contingency for \$222,883,000 in projects that are expected to be bid in the next four years. Net project cost increased \$47,165,000, primarily for the North Cedar Interchange (\$25,400,000), California – Fruit to Ventura (\$13,727,000), Peach Ave. – Church to Jensen (\$4,216,000) and Peach – SR 180 to McKinley (\$5,777,000). The North Cedar Interchange is presently programmed for \$45,345,000 in STIP funding. Caltrans proposes to begin Right of Way subsequent to signing the freeway agreement scheduled for adoption in December and the project is proposed for construction in 2025-26.

The California – Fruit to Ventura project (\$25,011,000) is proposed for construction in 2024/25. The Peach projects (\$9,993,000) are scheduled in 2024-25 and 2025-26.

### **The Rural Program**

The Rural program has an estimated \$628,991,000 in revenues, \$818,236,000 in expenses and a net deficit of \$189,245,000 associated with the SR180 - I5 Connection.

Net project cost increased \$103,944,000, primarily on Golden State (\$16,696,000), SR 99 American Interchange (14,000,000) and for the addition of SR41, Excelsior to Kings County (\$70,800,000).

The first phase of Golden State is under construction. Discussion continues on the best way to deliver phase II in light of significant cost increase proposed by the Union Pacific Railroad.

The American Avenue phase of South Fresno Interchange was approved for \$42,353,000 in 2024 STIP funding and is proposed for construction in 2024/25 in sync with the North/Cedar Interchange.

Caltrans is completing preliminary studies to explore improvements along the SR 180 West connection to I5 with the intent of developing a financeable improvement during the life of the current measure that could extend into a proposed third measure.

**Recommendation:** Adopt Resolution 2024-05 Updating the Measure C Regional Transportation Plan. The updated plan will be forwarded to the Transportation Authority for consideration.

- Les Beshears (FCOG) gave a summary of Measure C Regional Transportation Program.
- After an opportunity for public comment, Mrs. Morales (Reedley) motioned, and Mr. Alimi (Fresno County) seconded to approve the action as presented.

All in Favor, no opposed. Motion passed.

### **III. OTHER ITEMS**

A. Items from Staff

- Robert Phipps (FCOG) thanked the committees for letters of support.
- Simran Jhutti (FCOG) TOD is out today.

### B. Items from Members

• None.

#### IV. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS

### A. Public Presentations

• None.

### V. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 9:21 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert Phipps, Interim Executive Director

<u>Public:</u> Lorena Mendibles

#### Staff:

Denise Flores, Robert Phipps, Simran Jhutti, Juan Ramirez, Ofelia Abundez, Shichen Fan, Pankaj Joshi, Les Beshears, Jennifer Rodriguez, Brenda Thomas, Jeff Long, Kai Han, Santosh Bhattarai.